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HEARING RESUMES [3.32 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  If we just record that this is a resumption of the hearing 

that was adjourned on the matter of Stage 1 subdivision and as 

indicated in the minute that was issued last week is focused on drafting 5 

matters and questions arising from drafting on the matters of control 

and discretion in a draft of those provisions which were circulated this 

morning to any parties who wanted to attend are available to view the 

document and all parties were invited to this hearing. 

 10 

 The draft set of provisions does not represent the Panel’s decision, it is 

simply a discussion draft for purposes of this feedback process.  With 

those formalities I wonder if we could just quickly go around the table 

in terms of recording appearances, now on behalf of the Council? 

 15 

MR MATHESON:   Alan Matheson. 

 

MR LONG:   Andrew Long. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And on behalf of the Crown? 20 

 

MS McINTYRE:   Sandra McIntyre. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Thank you, no other parties in attendance.  The Hearings’ 

Panel is constituted on the basis of Mr Udale being available by video 25 

conference and Ms Dawson and myself. The Registrar today is Victoria 

Henstock (ph 00.19) and alongside me, Mr Langman, who is going to 

take record of any issues arising so we can work through those matters 

in the form of the agenda in front of you. 

 30 

  [3.35 pm] 

 

 In terms of that I have noted the transcript and that will take record of 

anything that people observe by way of comments on the matters that 

we go through so just we are now down to the third item, identification 35 

of drafting questions for discussion and at this point you can feel 

relaxed while we have got the formal names on the transcript, we are 

around a table, in this forum it is proper to use first names if you wish. 

 

 So starting with the Council are there any, if you could identify 40 

anything you wanted to discuss and, Mr Langman will take note of that 

and then we will go through and if you could identify the provision and 

the page number for the transcript as you go through.  We are looking 

here at a working draft of 10 December circulated for this process, 

copies of which will be returned to the independent secretariat, Ms 45 

Henstock, at the close of this part of the hearing. 
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MR LONG:   Full notes I guess the first one is at 8.2.4 - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  So we will just take note at this stage, Mr Long, of the 

item 8.2.4 on page eight, 5 

 

MR LONG:   8.2.4 on page eight and then in response to 8.2.4B question at 

8.2.4C, 8.3.2.1C5 page 10, 8.5.7G page 30, I'm going perhaps back to 

the start a little bit, on page seven where the old 8.2.1 was but has now 

been deleted.  I have some comments in relation to previous decisions 10 

on where they relate to rules that are no longer shown. 

 

MS DAWSON:   (INDISTINCT 2.55) 

 

MR LONG:   8.2.1. 15 

 

MS DAWSON:   8.2.1. 

 

MR LONG:  Yes, so that’s a decision for a multiunit residential property at 

Meadowlands they had clauses that weren’t presented properly. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, now just a couple of comments, one is in terms of 

housekeeping it is very, very important that we keep our voices up, and 

while it is slightly unnatural for a discussion around the table, it is 

important that the transcript is recording what we are saying, so thank 25 

you, Mr Long. 

 

 The second thing I have observed is bearing in mind the focus of this 

discussion is confined to drafting matters, not matters of merit, not 

matters of evidence or submission and purely in regard to matters of 30 

discretion and matters of control and anything arising from that?  Right, 

thank you, is that the list? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, thank you, Mr Matheson is there anything further 

from Council for us? 

 

MR MATHESON:   The Councils. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, now, Ms McIntyre? 

 

MS McINTYRE:   I did not find any questions. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, thank you.  All right, so just at this point, Mr 45 

Langman, if you could just help us keep in order and just nominate the 
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provision for discussion and we will then find out what the questions 

are and what comes from that? 

 

MR LANGMAN: Certainly, so we have four points there, point one is 

reference to 8.2.4 on page eight, sub clause B. 5 

 

MR LONG: Sir, this is probably not relevant to the matters of control or 

discretion looking at that, but perhaps I will just say what it is and you 

decide whether we talk about it or not and so the final sentence deals 

with the hazardous activities in the industries list and there was a 10 

submission at stage 3 that suggested that be corrected to refer to the 

land use register and I intend to accept that as far as stage 3 so there 

would then be an inconsistency. 

 

  [3.40 pm] 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And the name that you gave there was? 

 

MR LONG:   Did I say the Listed Land Use Registry, I think it is.   

 20 

MS DAWSON:   So it is stage 3? 

 

MR LONG:   So it was in relation to the Central City Stage 3.   

 

MS DAWSON:   Okay, so it is effectively a separate rule? 25 

 

MR LONG:   Separate but they will be integrated together, rather than having 

two rules saying almost the identical thing.   

 

MS DAWSON:   So the idea is that the central city will eventually be merged 30 

back into the various chapters? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, through Stage 3 

 

MS DAWSON:   So is that a matter that could be worked through later on in 35 

terms of dealing with obviously the initial inconsistencies? 

 

MR LONG:   To the extent that section 13.6 of the listing would allow. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes.  All right.   40 

 

MR MATHESON:   As far as we can see it is purely just getting the name 

correct and that is something else you can pick up later on. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The point is noted.   45 
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MS DAWSON:   Yes, and maybe when we come to Central City could you 

remind us about that.   

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   All right, thank you.  That is very good. 

 

MR LONG:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Item C. 10 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, so there is a section highlighted there in yellow, and just in 

response to that, I think that that paragraph can be deleted, and put 

matters for control and matters for discretion, and that seems to be 

covered off in various places and appropriate places.   15 

 

 My only comment there is that it seems immediately before the yellow 

is part of the decision 3 text, the above requirements et cetera was part 

of that decision.  I do not think it makes it (INDISTINCT 1.57) as to 

how the plan works, just for information.   20 

 

MS DAWSON:   So that sentence has already been included in the Decision 3 

decision? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 25 

 

MS DAWSON:   But not with the rest of the paragraph? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, the rest paragraph is right.  So it was added to the existing 

paragraph. 30 

 

MS DAWSON:   I see, as part of decision 3? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 35 

MS DAWSON:   So one of the matters that the Council’s closing submissions 

asked us to look at was whether we needed to amend decision 3, and 

whether or not we could do that as part of this decision, or whether that 

needed to be notified.  So that is something that is on our radar, but 

thank you for – so that was added, so basically alerting us of the 40 

overlap between those. 

 

MS MCINTYE:   Just a suggestion, I may be able to offer to you, is that the 

remainder of that paragraph is largely duplicated in 8.3.3.1, so if there 

is a need to retain a sentence that came from decision 3 there may be a 45 

possibility of just incorporating it into 8.3.3.2. 
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MR LONG:   16. 

 

MS MCINTYRE:   16.  Allotments with existing proposed buildings.   

 5 

MR LONG:   Possibly.   

 

MS DAWSON:   So to follow up on what you have said, Mr Long, is that you 

have said that the matters covered in that paragraph are already covered 

by, you think are adequately covered by other matters already in the 10 

Chapter, relating to other matters in (INDISTINCT 4.10) for ordinary 

resource consent type procedures? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 15 

MS DAWSON:   And the paragraph what could be deleted, but we need to be 

alerted to the fact that the last sentence was added as a part of decision 

3, so the deleting of it is effectively a change to decision 3, so we need 

to put that into our decision making about what we do about Decision 

3. 20 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, okay.  Thank you. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is that everything on that point? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   That is very good. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Very helpful, thank you.  So if we go to, is it 8.3.2.1 on 

page 10? 

 

MR LONG:   That is right, yes.   35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And C5.   

 

MR LONG:   Yes, in response to the text in yellow, the ODP’s notified in stage 

1, do show fix and flexible developments on those ODP’s.  And the 40 

ODP’s to come we will also do the same.   
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  [3.45 pm] 

 

MS DAWSON:   So when we looked at the ODPs in the Industrial Chapter for 

example, we didn’t think that they did show fixed and flexible 

developments and the input then when you are going to get those ODP 5 

and the only one remaining in here, in this subdivision chapter is the 

Halswell West one, (ph 0.32) - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Langman, have you got a comment on that? 

 10 

MR LANGMAN:   I think the Outline Development Plans that show fixed and 

flexible elements have been deferred to the residential New 

Neighbourhood Zone so the only remaining Outline Development Plan 

is essentially where there is a decision pending as part of this section in 

relation to commercial and industrial areas is my understanding. 15 

 

MS DAWSON:   So this just says where there is a relevant Outline 

Development Plan all fixed elements shown must be complied with so 

are you – is that - - - 

 20 

MR LONG:   I looked at 864 and 865 which are the other, is it South Masham 

and North Halswell and they do identity fixed and flexible but that may 

be Stage 2 but I think in any case there will be Outline Development 

Plans with the fixed and flexible elements shown on them.   

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So those plans will be part of the Stage 2 Hearing matters 

that the Panel heard, constitutes that matter? 

 

MS McINTYRE:   Those Outline Development Plans are not part of the plans 

that are adhered to the Residential New Neighbour. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So North Halswell and South Masham were re-notified of 

these? 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, North Halswell and South Masham were re-notified. 

 

MS DAWSON:   And do those who notified re-notified outline plans show 

fixed and flexible elements? 40 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, they do. 

 

MS McINTYRE:   They show fixed elements, they do not specify other 

elements as per the area. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So and the further ones that are coming along that were 

notified of Stage 2 of the New Neighbourhood, all of those show fixed 

elements? 5 

 

MS McINTYRE:   I do not believe all of them do, some of them do. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Sorry, just pause for a minute.  So with that I think we – I 

just want to ask the transcriber, was that last question picked up?  All 10 

right, Ms Dawson, just hold.  You will have to wait until the 

microphone comes in front of you I am afraid otherwise it is not picked 

up, so we will go back to your question. 

 

 Okay, so the Hearing is adjourned.  Sorry about this but the Hearing 15 

has to be adjourned in the absence of a Panel member; we do not have 

a quorum.  Let us terminate the Hearing for a minute; we hope to come 

back soon.  Thank you. 

 

ADJOURNED [3.48 pm] 20 

RESUMED [3.55 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well thank you parties for that, we have now got the 

gremlin fixed and Mr Udale looks nice and relaxed up there, hearing is 

now resumed with a quorum and it is now five to four. 25 

 

 All right, so we were on the discussion of C5 on page 10, we covered 

the explanation that Mr Long has given which has assisted us in 

understanding the position on fixed elements of ODPs.  Ms Dawson, I 

think you were completing a question at the time that the system went 30 

down, is there anything - - - 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, I have a couple more questions please, I just want to 

make sure that I understand in relation to the Residential Zone Outline 

Development Plans, they are either in stage 2 and there are submissions 35 

that, if they have not got fixed elements identified as notified, there are 

submissions that enable that to be considered through the stage 2 

process - - -  

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 40 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - and for those ones that were notified in stage 1, they 

have been re-notified as catch-up with the stage 2 and that enables 

fixed elements, if they are needed - - -  

 45 

MR LONG:   Yes. 
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MS DAWSON:   - - - to be shown on those Outline Development Plans? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   And they will be considered as part, am I right in thinking 

they will all be considered as part of the new neighbourhood zone 

hearing which is part of stage 2 in the New Year? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So the answer to all those questions was yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes. 

 15 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Okay, so that – well thank you very much that is excellent.  

So the next question is, that there are also a large number of other 

Outline Development Plans that are not in residential zones, so my first 20 

question is – so there is two questions – is this standard related to C5 in 

the subdivisions rules, intended to only relate to Outline Development 

Plans in residential zones or, or not? 

 

MR LONG:   No, it covers all zones. 25 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, okay, yes that is what I had imagined. 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 30 

MS DAWSON:   So when I had looked at some of the – those Outline Plans 

that I have looked at in industrial/commercial zones, did not appear to 

include fixed elements, but they do include – well the land use rules 

refer to key structuring elements, but those are listed in the land use 

rules - - -  35 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - and are therefore not fixed elements for the purposes of 

this rule; can you comment on that for me please, on how it is intended 40 

to work? 

 

MR LONG:   No.  I need to go and look at what those ODPs actually showing 

and make sure they are consistent with this rule.  I guess - - -  

 45 

MS DAWSON:   They definitely do not have fixed elements on the - - -  
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MR LONG:   No, if it is stage 1, there are no ODPs that show fixed elements, 

then we probably do not need this rule at this time. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Long, would you like to consider that on the basis of 5 

checking something in terms of which would it be helpful for me to 

make a direction for you to file that by way of a supplementary 

memorandum or statement? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Would you be able to do that within a day or so? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, so if I set a time for that being say by 5.00 pm 

tomorrow? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, thank you. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So – yes - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So directed. 25 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes.  So just to be, to follow up on my question in relation to 

the Chairman’s direction, I will be interested to know whether, what 

amendments would be needed, if any, to this rule to ensure consistency 

with what is shown or not shown on the other Outline Development 30 

Plans that are not in the other residential ones? 

 

  [4.00 pm] 

 

MS McINTYRE:   It may be how, I mean because as you say all those matters 35 

in the residential ones are going to be subject to a hearing, but it may be 

helpful to you to summarise the revised proposal that the Council has 

provided with its evidence removes any distinction in the rules between 

fixed and other elements. So while there are some fixed elements 

shown on some plans and they generally relate to road access points, 40 

there is no distinction made in the rules so - - - 

 

MS DAWSON:   Is this just in relation to residential you are talking about? 

 

MS McINTYRE:   Yes. 45 
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MS DAWSON:   See, so this rule, if this rule was to do with new 

neighbourhoods it would not be in this decision - - -  

 

MS McINTYRE:   No. 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   - - - because that has been deferred so this rule can only relate 

to non-New Neighbourhood Zones, of which there are numerous that 

have Outline Development Plans that are relevant.  So what I want to 

know is what should this rule say in relation to Outline Development 

Plans that are not part of Stage 2 new neighbourhoods. 10 

 

 Because our inclination, I suppose our inclination would be just to say 

where there is a relevant Outline Development Plan it must be 

complied with, because that is about all we could say in the basis of 

submissions I suppose for the industrial ones, that may not be what is 15 

intended by the Council. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, thank you. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So have you got a sufficient note of that question, 

Mr Long? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 25 

 

MS DAWSON:   As long as you understand my question. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I will endeavour to put a minute out but the pressures of 

other things at the moment may mean I may not quite achieve that, 30 

perhaps you could run on the basis of the direction I have recorded on 

the transcript unless I provide a minute to clarify that. 

 

MR LONG:  Yes.   

 35 

MR MATHESON:   The other thing that might just help Ms Dawson as well is 

just differentiating between I think would be perhaps fixed elements 

and then in the land use we talk about key structuring elements, so we 

will just clarify that, and we will come back to you as well. 

 40 

MS DAWSON:  As I understand it those words “key structuring elements” are 

only used in the Industrial Commercial chapter. 

 

MR MATHESON:   That is correct, yes. 

 45 



 Page 441 

  

Ch8: Subdivision, Development and Earthworks (Part) (PHC) 10.12.15 

MS DAWSON:   And those key structuring elements are identified in those 

rules, the land use rules, so that identification could be relied on in the 

end. 

 

MR MATHESON:   That is correct. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, does that complete everything on that point? 

 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you. 

 10 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you, page 30 and item 8.5.7(g) I think.  

Mr Long. 

 15 

MR LONG:   Apparently what happens in some instances that a company like 

Orion does not want a connection at the time of subdivision, they want 

the land owner to come to them to get a connection, and so therefore in 

some instances (g) may not be achievable at the time of subdivision and 

then you would not get your section 2.2.4,  and then obviously the new 20 

land owner could not go to Orion so the Operative City Plan uses the 

words, “the ability to connect afterwards” which might be a bit more 

useful. 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, I noticed that occurs in some places. 25 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, so whether allotments have the ability to connect to 

appropriate connections. 

 

MS DAWSON:   The appropriate ability to connect to. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Can I ask a couple of questions on that?  So the concept of 

connection, that is getting customer to link to the network, is that 

correct in my understanding? 

 35 

MR LONG:   Yes, my understanding is that is done on Orion in particular, they 

do not want - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I understand that. 

 40 

MR LONG:   - - - in their (ph 4.43) time so just to get us at the gate or at the 

drive with the connection. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Right.  So whether there is an ability, is this the wording 

you have in mind, “whether there is an ability for allotments to 45 

appropriately connect” or something to that effect?  
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MR LONG:   That would be fine, and that is how the Operative Plan is - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   To an electrical supplier system or telecommunications.   

 5 

  [4.05 pm] 

 

MR LONG:   Yes.  And the second question I had was your comment relates to 

both the electrical supply system and the telecommunication- - - 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  And the second question I had was your comment 

relates to both the electrical supply system and the telecommunications 

network, or just one? 

 

MR LONG:   Just electricity as far as I know, but it could be both, yes. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, so thank you, thank you for that, that has 

clarified it for me.  And I think we are on to the last item, are we?  It is 

8.2.1, so we go back.  And is that on page 7? 

 20 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, subdivision guidance document? 

 

MR LONG:   So I am actually referring to the 8.2.1 is no longer there. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Oh, it is no longer there.  So not the 8.2.1 on the draft, but 

the old 8.2.1? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, which included decision text from decision 3 in particular, 30 

and there are other parts of decision 3 that relate to provisions that have 

been removed or integrated into other, as a result of the change of 

format of the chapter. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So is this 8.2.1 in the notified version, or in the - - - 35 

 

MR LONG:   No.  The notified version. 

 

MS DAWSON:   As opposed to the closing version from the subdivision 

hearing? 40 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, the notified version as opposed to the closing version.  And 

there are a couple of instances throughout that, decision where that 

same thing occurs.   

 45 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So do you have a description of it for us? 
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MR LONG:   From memory, detailing the restricted discretionary activity 

status for those repairs of multi-unit complexes, that is through that 

decision.   

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So you have just provided a copy of what was in the 

notified version and that is in front Ms Dawson? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, yes.   

 10 

MS DAWSON:   So this is a copy of decision 3? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   I guess one of the things that we will have to turn our mind to 15 

and is not covered in the Council’s closing submissions is because the 

conferencing version that was in the Council’s closing version from the 

subdivision chapter had changed so much from the structure, that 

decision 3, there are various parts of decision 3 that do not mesh now 

with the new even structure, or even the activity status I think was the 20 

matter that was raised.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So we were asked to turn our mind to the extent of which we 25 

can meld them back, without doing a more than minor change.  Is this a 

matter that could be dealt with, it may be able to, well that we should 

turn our mind to as part of that exercise? 

 

MR LONG:   Possibly, I did not think through it too deeply, I have just sort of 30 

identified where, you know, if that clause is no longer in the draft 

decision for subdivision for stage 1, or if it is not, then where it has 

gone.  So there are some things outstanding.  Some of them will be 

unnecessary I guess, as part of the change in format and that particular 

18.2.1.1 of the notified version is one of those I suspect, because those 35 

things are probably dealt with through the restricted discretionary 

tables. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So in this document you have just provided us, which is the 

decision 3 part of subdivision - - -  40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The provisions of which are part of the Operative Plan as 

a result of the Order in Council.  So those are where they sit. 
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MS DAWSON:   And so you have highlighted on this document those parts 

decided, decision 3, that no longer appear in this version for one reason 

or another? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes.  And I just refer to that to where they do appear they often 5 

will now have a different numbering system, I am sure that is not an 

issue but - - -  

 

MS DAWON:   Yes, numbers are different, maybe even the activity status 

might be different, yes.  All right, thank you for that. 10 

 

MR LONG:   And I would add it is probably also the same for Meadowlands 

exemplar decision, although that is one and you - - -    

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, but just so that I understand, we all appreciate it 15 

don’t we, that the provisions that those decisions confirmed are existing 

in the plan now? 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, yes. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And this decision, once it issues, will not change that? 

 

MR LONG:   No. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Unless the decision says it changes that? 25 

 

MR LONG:   Yes, correct. 

 

  [4.10 pm] 

 30 

MS DAWSON:   So what you are saying is that some of these, the numbering 

of the chapters changed from the start, so it is going to be, there is 

potential inconsistency between some parts of the operative and some 

parts that are about to become operative, even – and they purport to be 

the same Chapter, and that some of the provisions, even if we had 35 

managed to reconcile the numbering, there would be differences in 

structure that we need to address? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I think that particular decision records, and obviously 

these matters if they have any bearing on the interests of parties 40 

involved in that decision, then that needs to be addressed in terms of 

process, but I think that decision makes it explicit that there would be a 

need in a proper process in due course potentially to rectify anything by 

way of how different decisions work together. 

 45 
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MS DAWSON:   I think that is particularly the case for the Mennow Lanes one 

because it is more of a discrete, but for this one which is the temporary- 

- - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Activities. 5 

 

MS DAWSON:   Well it is the changes in subdivision status as a result of 

where is needed for rebuilding and repair, some of those provisions 

have been merged into here.  I mean am I right in thinking that this is, 

this issue started once the structure of the subdivision chapter started to 10 

be amended, this is not a recent problem? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So, Ms Dawson, is there anything further you think the 

Panel would need to be assisted by, or is that information sufficient for 

us to move forward? 15 

 

MS DAWSON:   Well, no, not really.  I am – In the Council’s closing legal 

submissions they just address the issue of the inconsistency and activity 

status for change of tenure or subdivision for repair rebuilding as a 

temporary measure, versus the ones that came into the general chapter 20 

and some things are controlled whereas the high priority ones are left 

discretionary. 

 

 So the Council’s legal submission address that and gave their opinion 

on how that could be addressed, but it does not address this more broad 25 

issue about - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Right, so perhaps the proper process would be for us to 

take that information on board and the Panel to initiate, if it feels it 

should, any further communication by way of minute? 30 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, I think we may well need some assistance, it may well 

be mechanical, yes, but it may require a change to decision three which 

a decision needs to be made as to whether that is minor or not minor. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well the Panel will consider that if the Panel forms that 

view. 

 

MS DAWSON:   That is right but we may need information to help us to know 

what those changes might need to be. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, all right.  Okay, anything else? 

 

 Well thank you for those comments so what remains from here is if we 

could now return to the middle of the table the draft provisions that 45 

were the subject of discussion.  The question of the anticipated release 
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date, obviously there are a range of factors in the mix, one might say 

elephants in the process of birth which are somewhat distracting at the 

moment in terms of timing, so all that we can really say is we are using 

our best endeavours to get this decision in proper format out as soon as 

possible, and I take it a minute is not required in order to clarify the 5 

direction given earlier on in the transcript. 

 

 I will endeavour to get some form of communication out to the parties, 

at least to alert them to the fact that the transcript is available if anyone 

wants to review it on the basis of this resumed hearing.  So is there any 10 

further matters? 

 

MS DAWSON:   Would you like this to be an Exhibit? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, what Ms Dawson is referring to is the document 15 

that Mr Long tabled as an extract from decision three, that decision 

being a public document and therefore not requiring it to be an Exhibit. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Okay, thank you. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, all right, well thanks very much everyone, the 

hearing is now adjourned pending further directions if required. 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 4.14 PM ACCORDINGLY 


